
For further information or for individuals with a disability who are in need of a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the meeting, 
please contact Paul Mills, Executive Director at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting date at 630.685.4157 or pmills@fountaindale.org 

FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

May 19, 2022 | 7 p.m. 
300 West Briarcliff Road | Bolingbrook | Margaret J. “Peggy” Danhof Board Room 

 
View the meeting online via YouTube:  https://youtu.be/X5bUMetszH8 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call of Trustees 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Minutes for Approval 

a. Board Meeting – April 21, 2022 
b. Executive Session – April 21, 2022 

5. Employee Recognition 
a. Nancy Korczak – 5 Years 

6. Comments from the Public 
7. Friends of the Library 
8. New Business – Action Items 

a. Approval of Staff Health Insurance for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
b. Approval of Secretary Audit Liaisons 
c. Approval of Revised Interlibrary Loan Policy 

9. Library Projects 
10. Correspondence 
11. Treasurer’s Report 
12. Bills for Approval 

a. Bills Paid Report – May, 2022 
b. Bills Payable Report – May, 2022 

13. Director’s Report – April, 2022 
14. Unfinished Business 
15. Reports 

a. Building  
b. Finance  
c. Strategic  
d. Internal Board Operations 

16. Agenda Building for the Next Meeting 
17. Announcements 
18. Adjournment 

 

mailto:pmills@fountaindale.org
https://youtu.be/X5bUMetszH8


May 2022 Agenda Background 
Paul Mills 

 

8. New Business – Action Items 
 
 

a. Approval of Staff Health Insurance for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
 
Please see included memo for an in-depth review. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to fund the allocation for insurance at $7,000 
per eligible employee for those employees selecting health insurance and 
to fund an allocation of $500 for those employees who do not select health 
insurance but wish to select dental, vision, life or AFLAC products. 

 
b. Approval of Secretary Audit Liaisons 

 
Each year the Board needs to approve appointments to be Secretary 
Audit Liaisons. The liaisons will review the minutes of the board meetings 
for the previous fiscal year and certify that the records of the Board of 
Trustees are in order. This certification is a requirement of the Illinois 
Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR). 
 
The review must be completed by August 1, 2022. 
 
With approval by the Board, President Kalnicky has named Trustee 
Spindel and Trustee Siska as the 2022 Secretary Audit Liaisons. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to approve the appointment of Trustee Spindel 
and Trustee Siska as the 2022 Secretary Audit Liaisons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



c. Approval of Revised Interlibrary Loan Policy 
 
This draft revision of our Interlibrary Loan Policy features the following 
suggested changes: 
 
- Clarifies what we will attempt to lend and borrow; 
- Removes references to fines as we are fine-free; 
- Removes references to specific loan periods to make the policy 

more evergreen; 
- Removes a reference to associated accounts to eliminate a 

potential roadblock to other patrons requesting an item. 
 
  Our policy style guide was also applied to this draft policy. 
 
  Our attorney has reviewed this draft policy as well. 

 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to repeal the existing Interlibrary Loan Policy 
and approve the revised Interlibrary Loan Policy. 

 
 

 
 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
WILL AND DUPAGE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS  

HELD APRIL 21, 2022 
BOLINGBROOK, ILLINOIS 

 
 
A meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fountaindale Public Library District, Will and DuPage 
Counties, Illinois was held in the Margaret J. “Peggy” Danhof Board Room, 300 West Briarcliff 
Road, Bolingbrook, Illinois on Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 7 p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. by President Robert Kalnicky. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The roll was called by recorder, Lea Pottle, and a quorum was established.   
 
PRESENT 
 
Present at roll call were Marcelo Valencia, Kathryn Spindel, Bobby Armstrong and Robert 
Kalnicky. 
 
Trustee Newell entered at 7:02 p.m. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Celeste Bermejo. 
 
Trustee Bermejo had communicated prior to the Board Meeting that she would be unable to 
attend. 
 
FOUNTAINDALE STAFF PRESENT 
 
The following staff was present: Paul Mills, Lea Pottle, and Jay Purazzo. 
 
Nancy Korczak was present online.  



 
PUBLIC PRESENT 
 
The following public was present: Sarah Siska, Jody Hargett, Jennie Mills,  
 
AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Kalnicky asked for a motion to approve the agenda. A 
motion was made by Armstrong, seconded by Valencia. 
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Armstrong, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo, Newell 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING – March 17, 2022 
 
The minutes of the board meeting held March 17, 2022 were presented. A motion to approve the 
minutes was made by Spindel, seconded by Valencia. Minutes were approved as read.  
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Armstrong, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo, Newell 

 
MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION – March 17, 2022 
 
The minutes of the Executive Session held March 17, 2022 were presented. A motion to approve 
the minutes was made by Spindel, seconded by Armstrong. Minutes were approved as read.  
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 
President Kalnicky recognized Jay Purazzo for his 5 years of service and presented him with a 
certificate.  
  
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
No comments were made. 



 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY 
 
Jody Hargett shared the results of the Friends’ Spring Book Sale. A total of $1,393 was received. 
Due to a smaller number of books available for sale, the income from the sale was lower than in 
previous years. Hargett announced that since the Book Cellar has been reopened to the public, it 
has been doing well. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approval of Appointment of Library Trustee 
 
A motion to approve the appointment of Sarah Siska as Library Trustee was made by Spindel, 
seconded by Newell.  
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
Administration of Oath of Office for Library Trustee 
 
Trustee Valencia administered the Oath of Office for Sarah Siska. Siska took her seat with the 
Board.  
 
LIBRARY PROJECTS 
 
Mills reported that he and Tasos Priovolos, Building Operations Manager, met with Tria 
Architecture to discuss the exterior lighting project. Meetings have commenced and a schedule 
for the work is still pending. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
None. 
 
TREASURER'S REPORT 
 
The Treasurer's Report for March, 2022 was presented by Trustee Spindel and will be filed for 
audit. 
 
BILLS FOR APPROVAL   



 
Bills Paid Report – April, 2022 
 
Bills paid for the month of April in the amount of $54,787.08 was presented for approval. 
Motion to approve was made by Spindel, seconded by Newell. 
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Siska, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
Bills Payable Report – April, 2022 
 
Bills payable for the month of April in the amount of $320,355.35 was presented for approval.  
Motion to approve was made by Newell, seconded by Spindel. 
     

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Siska, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
DIRECTOR'S REPORT – March, 2022 
 
Mills Reported that the Bookmobile has been fixed. The panel and windshield were repaired and 
replaced. 
 
Mills commented on upcoming legislation effective in June. It addresses the timing for filling 
Trustee vacancies. 
 
Mills discussed legislation that may be signed this Summer.  This legislation would require most 
units of local governments to form special committees that would meet to review operations of 
the unit of local government. 
 
Mills announced that he has been selected to serve on the subcommittee to fill the retiring ILA 
Director’s position. 
 
Mills reported that upon the Attorney’s interpretation of legislation, all Board members should 
participate in Anti-Harassment training. Mills recommended that the Board take the training that 
is required of all staff of the District. Mills asked Lea Pottle, Human Resources Manager, to 
describe the training to the Trustees. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



 
None. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Building – None. 
 
Finance – None. 
 
Strategic Plan – A Strategic Plan meeting is scheduled for Friday, April 22, 2022. 
 
Internal Board Operations – None. 
 
 
AGENDA BUILDING FOR THE NEXT MEETING 
 
None. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Newell announced that the National Day of Prayer service is scheduled for May 5, 2022 at 
Living Water Community Church. 
 
Armstrong mentioned that the Bolingbrook Police Department is having a Prescription Drug 
Take Back event on April 30, 2022 from 10 a.m.-2 p.m. 
 
Kalnicky informed the Board that the Community Services Council (CSC) has funds available to 
assist residents with rent and mortgage payments. The need for funds must be due to COVID-19 
reasons. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
A motion was made by Spindel, seconded by Newell, to enter Executive Session at 7:31 p.m. for 
Personnel 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) “The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the 
public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the 
public body or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its validity.” 
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Siska, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 



ABSENT: Bermejo 
 
A motion was made by Armstrong, seconded by Newell, to return to Open Session at 7:50 p.m. 
 
OPEN SESSION 
 
APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 
 
The Board discussed Mills’ performance and expressed strong satisfaction with it. 
 
A motion to approve a 4.5% increase for Executive Director Paul Mills was made by Newell, 
seconded by Valencia.   
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Siska, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:01 p.m. was made by Newell, seconded by Valencia.  
 

AYES:  Valencia, Spindel, Newell, Armstrong, Siska, Kalnicky 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Bermejo 

 
 
 

 
 
Approved:                                                                

     Marcelo Valencia, Secretary 
 
____________________________________ 
Robert A. Kalnicky, President 
 
 



 

 

May 19, 2022 
  
  
From:           Lea Pottle, Human Resources Manager 
  
To:                Board of Trustees 
  
Subj:             Employee Health Insurance Renewal for 2022/2023 
   
History 
  
.   2017/2018 – Total decrease for medical 9.92% and dental increase by 2% 
   Board approved annual allocation: $6,550 
.   2018/2019 – Total increase for medical 2.1% and dental increase by 5% 
   Board approved annual allocation: $6,700 
.   2019/2020 – Total decrease for medical .1% and dental increase by 2.5% 
   Board approved annual allocation: $6,780 
.   2020/2021 – Total increase for medical 2% and dental increase by 0% 
   Board approved annual allocation: $6,700 
.   2021/2022 – Total decrease for medical .1% and dental increase by 0% 
   Board approved annual allocation: $6,750 
 
 
 Background 
  
·   Health insurance coverage is with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Illinois. 
·   Current total number of eligible full-time employees is 58. 
·   An allocation of $500.00 is available for those employees who do not select health insurance 
    allowing the employee the opportunity to select dental, vision, life or AFLAC products.  
·   Employees also have an option of additional health plans for an additional cost. 
·   Family coverage is available at the employee’s expense. 
  
Discussion 
  
According to the HR Source 2021 Library Survey, the average percent of premium paid by a 
library for single coverage PPO from 77 area libraries participating is 84.5%. 
  
Medical Renewal 
  
BCBS of IL issued an initial renewal with a 10.47% increase. Rob Duerr, Account Executive with 
Alliant Mesirow Insurance Services, worked with the underwriters to revise the renewal bringing 
it to a 3.55% increase in overall renewal rates. The District is appreciative of Rob’s actions on 
behalf of our organization. 
 
 
 



 

 

Dental Renewal 
 
BCBS of IL issued an initial renewal with a 2% increase to the District’s current dental plan. A 
revised renewal with a 0% increase was negotiated. The District will continue to offer the same 
two dental plans for employees. 
  
Vision Renewal 
  
No change in rates for vision coverage with EyeMed.   
 
Life and Dependent Life Renewal 
  
No change in rates for Life and Dependent Life renewal with Dearborn National.  
 
The library purchases the life insurance for all benefit eligible employees. The annual premium 
for this benefit is $6,716.40. 
 
Recommendation 
  
Due to the increase in the renewal rates for medical premiums and no increase in dental 
premiums, a recommendation is being made for the District to increase the funding from $6,750 
to $7,000 per employee. This increase will allow us to cover a similar percentage of the cost of 
benefits as last year. This valuable benefit assists with the recruitment of staff in a competitive 
market place. 
 
Funding will cover the following percentages for Single Medical, Dental, and Vision coverages: 
 
 Proposed 2022/2023 2021/2022 Employees covered 
PPO-Select, Option 1 99.15% 99.35% 3 
PPO-Select, Option 2 96.61% 96.79% 14 
HMO 96.92 % 95.92% 15 
HDHP w/HSA 86.42% 85.87% 1 
PPO+ 79.93% 78.47% 6 

 
 
Currently 7 Staff members do not enroll in the District’s Group Medical coverages. It is possible 
that circumstances may change and they may be eligible to join during the year. 
 
For those employees who do not elect medical coverage, it is recommended that the $500.00 
allocation continue with options to select Single Dental, Single Vision and Life Insurance. This 
amount is sufficient to cover the cost for these policies. 
  
Suggested Motion:  Motion to fund the allocation for insurance at $7,000.00 per eligible 
employee for those employees selecting health insurance and to fund an allocation of $500.00 
for those employees who do not select health insurance but wish to select dental, vision, life or 
AFLAC products. 



FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
INTERLIBRARY LOAN POLICY 

  
PURPOSE 
Fountaindale Public Library District provides interlibrary loan (ILL) services to give 
patrons access to library resources that are not available in our library or in the Pinnacle 
Library Cooperative. Materials are borrowed from other libraries outside of our district 
and we provide materials from our collections to other libraries. Use of this service is 
governed by the policy established by the Library Board of Trustees and any applicable 
rules or regulations adopted by the Library. The Executive Director as the executor of 
the policy for the Board of Trustees has discretion in determining what use is "in the 
best interest of the Library" and is authorized to act accordingly, including limiting the 
use of circulating items by individuals whose activities interfere with library operations, 
adversely affect public safety, or cause public disturbances. The Board of Trustees may 
modify, amend or supplement this policy, as it deems necessary and appropriate. 
  
ELIGIBLE USERS 
Interlibrary loan is available to anyone with a library card in good standing from 
Fountaindale Public Library and Pinnacle Library Cooperative libraries that agree to the 
provision of these services outside of their home library. 
  
Teacher Cards are not eligible for interlibrary loan requests. 
  
Non-Pinnacle cardholders must go to their home library for ILL services. 
 
TYPICAL TIME FOR FULFILLMENT 
The interlibrary loan process can typically take two to six weeks for materials to arrive. 
Materials that are being borrowed from outside Illinois take longer to arrive. The library 
cannot guarantee the availability of materials or how quickly they may arrive. 
 
COST 
Some libraries do charge fees to loan their materials. There may also be charges for 
photocopies. If that is the case, a Fountaindale staff member will notify the patron to 
determine whether they would still like to borrow the item and pay the fees. 
  
LIMITATIONS 
The following materials are not available to request through interlibrary loan: 

● Materials that have been published in the past 12 months 
● Digital materials (For example: eBooks, eAudiobooks) 
● Excessive copies of one title 
● Textbooks 



● Formats the library does not lend through ILL, including electronic devices, 
equipment, kits, realia (objects and toys), and vinyl records 

● Kits and Realia 
● LP Albums 
● Equipment and Electronic Devices 
● Formats the library no longer owns, including VHS Movies, Books on Cassette, 

and Computer Software 
● Items owned or on order by a Pinnacle library unless they are lost or missing 

 
  
Requests for Fountaindale-sponsored book discussion groups need to be identified 
when the ILL request is made. The date of the discussion must be included on the 
request. 
  
ILL staff will attempt to borrow requested materials available at libraries located within 
the United States or Canada. 
 
NUMBER OF REQUESTS ALLOWED PER PERSON 
Each cardholder is limited to five requests a day. The maximum number of active 
requests at any one time is 35. 
  
PATRON RESPONSIBILITIES 
The label or paperwork that accompanies interlibrary loan material must be returned 
with the item. The cardholder may be charged for the material or for overdue fines if the 
paperwork is not with the item. 
  
Material must be picked up and returned to Fountaindale Public Library, its bookmobile, 
or its book drops but not to any other library. Overdue fines may be charged if material 
is returned to another library. 
  
Materials borrowed through interlibrary loan must be picked up within five days of 
notification. If materials are not picked up on a regular basis, interlibrary loan privileges 
may be suspended. 
  
If a patron regularly does not return interlibrary loan materials on their due dates or 
otherwise abuses this Interlibrary Loan Policy, interlibrary loan privileges may be 
suspended. 
  
Cardholders and associated accounts may not re-request the same item more than 
three times in a 12 month period. 
  



 
 
NOTIFICATION METHODS 
If there are any questions about a request, ILL staff will attempt to contact the 
cardholder according to the information in the cardholder’s library account. 
  
When interlibrary loan materials arrive, the cardholder will be notified according to the 
information in the cardholder’s library account. 
 
LOAN PERIOD AND RENEWALS 
The loan period for interlibrary loan materials is based upon Fountaindale Public 
Library's set loan periods for its own collections. Typically loan periods are seven days 
for feature movies and three weeks for other items. ILL items do count toward any limits 
established for cardholders. 
  
The lending library may impose restrictions on loans, which may include using the 
material in our library only or not allowing photocopying. 
  
Renewals of interlibrary loan materials are permitted on the condition that the lending 
library approves the renewal. Renewals can only be requested by interlibrary loan staff 
before the due date.  There is no guarantee that the lending library will allow a renewal. 
There is a maximum of one renewal available. Overdue items will not be renewed. 
  
FINES AND OVERDUE ITEMS 
Overdue fines will be charged for material returned past the due date. These fines can 
be found in Appendix 2 of the Fountaindale Public Library Circulation Policy. 
  
Patrons who have overdue items may have ILL privileges suspended until the item is 
returned and/or account charges are paid. 
 
BILLED, LOST, AND DAMAGED, AND OVERDUE ITEMS 
Material that is not returned, is lost, or is damaged will result in fines and fees. These 
fines and fees are determined by the owning library. Replacement copies will not be 
accepted; the cardholder will pay for the replacement of the material. 
 
Patrons who have overdue items may have ILL privileges suspended until the item is 
returned and/or account charges for lost and damaged items are paid. 
  
No refunds are available for interlibrary loan materials. 
  



FAILURE TO COMPLY 
Fountaindale Public Library District staff reserves the right to invalidate a library account 
and to grant temporary extensions of account privileges in appropriate circumstances. 
 
DAMAGES AND LIABILITY 
Any individual shall be held responsible for willful or accidental damage to interlibrary 
loan materials caused by the individual and/or when checked out to their account or 
accounts for which they are responsible. 
 
APPEAL AND REVIEW 
The Board of Trustees of Fountaindale Public Library District will review the Interlibrary 
Loan Policy and regulations periodically and reserves the right to amend them at any 
time. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to waive regulations under 
appropriate circumstances. The Executive Director is the chief person empowered to 
make decisions regarding the circulation of items and procedures as related to lending 
and borrowing. The Executive Director has delegated authority to implement this policy 
to the Collection Management and Technical Services Manager. 
  
Any appeals for changes to, or exceptions to, any portion of the Interlibrary Loan Policy 
will be considered. An individual wishing to file an appeal shall submit it to the Executive 
Director in writing. The Executive Director will respond in writing. 
  
DRAFT MAY 19, 2022 
 



April 30, 2022

Cash and Investment

Fountaindale Public Library District

Begining Balance Net Change-YTD Ending Balance

Cash and Investments

     Cash

          Cash Checking/Wintrust Operating $608,322.52 $250,599.55 $858,922.07

          Cash Checking/Payroll $178,891.41 ($12,843.13) $166,048.28

          Petty Cash $2,732.09 $500.00 $3,232.09

     Total Cash $789,946.02 $238,256.42 $1,028,202.44

     Investments

          Investment - General Fund/Wintrust MM $6,332,440.01 ($1,399,706.23) $4,932,733.78

          Investment - IL Funds/General $71,235.59 $65.85 $71,301.44

          Investment - IL Funds/INB/E-Pay $66,581.50 $3,239.26 $69,820.76

          Investment - Special Reserve/Wintrust MM $2,078,944.22 $1,878.16 $2,080,822.38

          Investment - Working Cash/Wintrust MM $1,072,520.67 $968.94 $1,073,489.61

          Investment - Special Reserve/PMA $16,645,365.03 $40,283.87 $16,685,648.90

     Total Investments $26,267,087.02 ($1,353,270.15) $24,913,816.87

     Bond Fund

4-1211-40 Invest/Wintrust MM Account $1,434,427.91 ($1,260,050.02) $174,377.89

     Total Bond Fund $1,434,427.91 ($1,260,050.02) $174,377.89

Total Cash and Investments $28,491,460.95 ($2,375,063.75) $26,116,397.20

Special Res. PMA - 0.704%

General - IL Fund -  0.478%

Money Market Wintrust - 0.593%

https://host.nxt.blackbaud.com/ledger/account/509?envid=p-NvrTGHoE9UW9950Vv2EMnA&svcid=fenxt&newWindow


April 30, 2022

Revenue Report

Fountaindale Public Library District

Current

Month

Year to

Date

Percent

Collected

Budgeted

Receipts

Uncollected

Receipts

Revenue

     Revenue Funds 1-8

          Property Tax - Will - 2020 $0.00 $5,187,462.72 100.12% $5,181,200.77 ($6,261.95)

          Property Tax Dupage 2020 $0.00 $89,268.64 84.42% $105,738.79 $16,470.15

          Property Tax Will - 2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,506,143.28 $4,506,143.28

          Property Tax Dupage - 2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $91,962.11 $91,962.11

          Other Tax $72,686.78 $298,750.56 181.04% $165,020.00 ($133,730.56)

          Interest ($369.32) $83,702.87 65.90% $127,010.00 $43,307.13

          Circulation Fees $945.90 $11,386.00 81.33% $14,000.00 $2,614.00

          Copy Machines $425.56 $4,048.51 80.97% $5,000.00 $951.49

          Fax Machine $416.20 $4,136.40 82.73% $5,000.00 $863.60

          Printing $1,517.87 $14,097.15 93.98% $15,000.00 $902.85

          Miscellaneous $13,622.91 $73,545.57 129.03% $57,000.00 ($16,545.57)

          Reimbursements $0.00 $1,827.69 91.38% $2,000.00 $172.31

          Board Reimbursements $0.00 $170.00 85.00% $200.00 $30.00

          Leases $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $300.00 $300.00

          Grant Income $0.00 $99,832.43 100.00% $99,833.00 $0.57

     Total Operating Funds $89,245.90 $5,868,228.54 56.56% $10,375,407.95 $4,507,179.41

     Bond Fund

          Property Tax - Will 2020 $0.00 $1,698,059.21 100.10% $1,696,303.40 ($1,755.81)

          Property Tax - Dupage 2020 $0.00 $29,506.94 85.23% $34,618.44 $5,111.50

          Property Tax - Will 2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,907,636.64 $1,907,636.64

          Property Tax - Dupage 2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $38,931.36 $38,931.36

          Interest Bond Fund $65.63 $733.83 14.68% $5,000.00 $4,266.17

     Total Bond Fund $65.63 $1,728,299.98 46.93% $3,682,489.84 $1,954,189.86

Total Revenue $89,311.53 $7,596,528.52 54.04% $14,057,897.79 $6,461,369.27



April 30, 2022

Expenditure Report

Fountaindale Public Library District

Current Month Year to Date % Expended Working Budget Unexpended Budget

Expenditures

     Total Expenditures - Operating Funds

          General Fund Expenditures

               Personnel Expense $345,980.63 $3,740,310.09 77.06% $4,854,000.00 $1,113,689.91

               Contractual Services $69,785.02 $414,372.47 73.73% $562,010.00 $147,637.53

               Supplies & Utilities $41,346.56 $382,009.77 65.71% $581,400.00 $199,390.23

               Library Materials $166,374.51 $726,039.36 57.35% $1,266,000.00 $539,960.64

               Capital Expenditures $7,934.16 $179,951.39 21.51% $836,512.00 $656,560.61

               Miscellaneous $9,940.58 $39,936.59 50.87% $78,500.00 $38,563.41

               Per Capita Grant $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $99,833.00 $99,833.00

          Total General Fund Expenditures $641,361.46 $5,482,619.67 66.23% $8,278,255.00 $2,795,635.33

          Other Fund Expenditures

               Audit Fund Expenditures $0.00 $7,400.00 61.16% $12,100.00 $4,700.00

               Liability Insurance Fund Expendit $0.00 $97,398.04 63.87% $152,500.00 $55,101.96

               Soc Sec/IMRF Fund Expenditures $46,568.56 $562,466.43 77.23% $728,320.00 $165,853.57

               Special Reserve Fund Expenditur $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $100.00 $100.00

               Maintenance Fund Expenditures $22,363.93 $298,034.67 88.57% $336,500.00 $38,465.33

          Total Other Fund Expenditures $68,932.49 $965,299.14 78.51% $1,229,520.00 $264,220.86

     Total Expenditures - Operating Funds $710,293.95 $6,447,918.81 67.82% $9,507,775.00 $3,059,856.19

          Bond Fund Expenditures

               Principal Payment - 2016A $0.00 $875,000.00 100.00% $875,000.00 $0.00

               Interest Payment - 2016A $0.00 $169,800.00 100.00% $169,800.00 $0.00

               Principal Payment - 2018 $0.00 $1,240,000.00 100.00% $1,240,000.00 $0.00

               Interest Payment - 2018 $0.00 $387,750.00 100.00% $387,750.00 $0.00

               Principal Payment - 2019 $0.00 $25,000.00 100.00% $25,000.00 $0.00

               Interest Payment - 2019 $0.00 $290,800.00 100.00% $290,800.00 $0.00

          Total Bond Fund Expenditures $0.00 $2,988,350.00 100.00% $2,988,350.00 $0.00

     Total $0.00 $2,988,350.00 100.00% $2,988,350.00 $0.00

Total Expenditures - All Funds $710,293.95 $9,436,268.81 75.51% $12,496,125.00 $3,059,856.19

__________________________________________________

Kathryn J. Spindel/Treasurer

























































































April 2022 Monthly Board Report 
Paul Mills 
 
 
Director 
 
Strategic Planning Update 
 
The team for our next Strategic Plan met after the April Board Meeting with our 
consultant, Amanda Standerfer.  Amanda guided us through the data that had been 
collected and helped us identify themes for our next plan.  We will be meeting with 
Amanda after the May Board Meeting to review her initial draft plan.   
 
Our strategic planning team consists of Celeste Bermejo, Board Vice President; 
Marcelo Valencia, Board Secretary; Nancy Korczak, Deputy Director; Amina Ali, 
Circulation Services Manager; Joyce Arellano, Childrens Services Manager; Melissa 
Bradley, Communications Manager; Debra Dudek, Adult & Teen Services Manager; 
Christina Theobald, Collections Services Manager; and myself. 
 
Pinnacle Library Cooperative (PLC) Strategic Planning Update 
 
Our Cooperative is also engaged in a planning process as well.  PLC has engaged the 
same consultant, Amanda Standerfer, and the PLC directors recently met with Amanda 
to identify priorities for PLC for our Cooperative’s first strategic plan. 
 
 
Deputy Director (Nancy Korczak) 
 
During April, the Public Services Departments continued to host great in-person 
programs and our patrons have responded positively with excellent attendance 
numbers. This year ATSD was able to host a gardening expo to get the spring 
gardening season kicked off. Patrons were able to interact with local organizations and 
get advice from the Bolingbrook Garden Club, patrons also enjoyed decorating their 
own garden pot.  
 
During April, our ATSD staff also spent time going through Notary training, with many 
new staff in that department we have a number of them who need to become notaries. 
We have seen demand for this service increase and having everyone in the department 
be a notary is essential.  
 
Tana Petrov’s report 

Outreach Services 
 
Outreach General Updates 
Here is a summary of our most important stats in April 2022: 

• 2,859 students were provided with booktalks by Mrs. C 
• 1,234 items were picked up from our remote bookdrops 
• 950 patrons visited our Bookmobile and/or Library Express Van stops 
• 822 kids were provided with a storytime/ booktalk by Miss Laura, Miss Melissa 

and Miss Carolyn 



• 575 reference questions were answered by Outreach staff 
• 242 patrons participated in Outreach events  
• 186 patrons participated in the Virtual Preschool Round-Up 
• 23 patrons were provided with Home Delivery Service  

 
From Carolyn’s report: “Outreach celebrated National Outreach Day on April 6th. Due 
to the weather, we had tables inside with the prize wheel, trivia challenge, crafts, and 
storytime. The Bookmobile was in front of the library and even though the kids were in 
school, we had a good turn out of patrons visiting both the table events and the 
Bookmobile. Outreach celebrated National Humor Month for “What’s Happening on the 
Bookmobile”. Staff all had a joke prepared to tell patrons, and we were giving away 
stickers with cute puns on them. 
 
Melissa L. celebrated 15 years at Fountaindale. She is an invaluable member of the 
Outreach team, who not only drives the Bookmobile, but is part of our MOPs 
puppeteers, provides storytimes, serves on the TinkerTroop, and provides programming 
for senior patrons in memory care. Melissa has created numerous virtual booktalks and 
is one of creators of the Memory Care Kits. Her experience, team spirit and positive 
attitude make her one of a kind. Congratulations, Melissa! 
 
Services for Seniors  

• Book Club at Atria: From Sarah’s report: “Atria Book Club for the month of 
April read Carnegie’s Maid by Marie Benedict. I supplied them with books I found 
in LEAP and discussion materials that were delivered a month prior to the 
meeting date. I also worked on May’s discussion questions and started to order 
the next set of books.” 

Revere Court Program: From Melissa’s report: “On 4/8, I did programming for 
the memory care residents at Revere Court. Since we are celebrating National 
Humor Month on the Bookmobile I thought it would be fun to tell some jokes and 
read some funny short stories. I also brought games to play with the residents. I 
read a few stories from Chicken Soup for the Soul: 101 Feel Good Stories: 
Laughter Is the Best Medicine. I did get some laughs from the residents. The 



games were a huge hit! They enjoyed playing Tic Tac Toe.”

 

Services for Preschools 
From Laura’s report: This month, I said hello again to some old friends when I was 
able to resume storytimes at IKEA (one of my favorite venues because they are so 
supportive to our mission here at the library), just as I had to say a teary-eyed goodbye 
(after 13 years) to storytimes at Hidden Oaks (Park District classes will no longer be 
held there due to the sale of the facility to the Forest Preserve). So many great 
memories there and I will miss all of my teacher friends who may not be making the 
move to the BRAC or ACC next year. I completed my two goals for the year this month. 
The first, the Preschool Kits, were a big hit in all the schools. I received giant thank you 
cards from all the classes at Kindercare Seneca and the teachers at St. Dominic laid all 
the books out for the kids to see (after my storytime) and told me that the finger puppets 
were perfect in their new Camping Center. 

Services for Schools 
From Cindy’s report: “For April I will be doing a new Puppet Show based on the book 
I Want A Dog By Jon Agee. I beefed it up a bit with extra parts so more kids got a 
chance to be in the puppet show. Used my last days in the office to prepare fully for this 
month, my signage for CSD got done early and I switched display to April books by the 
4th. I have been promoting the Let’s be Pen Pals Program and have gotten a few new 
pen pals this month.” 

From Cindy’s report: “I had a great time with the puppet show this month, especially 
in Ms. Farrars 2nd grade class. When it was time for the show, Ms Farrar had not only 
assigned parts but all the kids had costumes to wear for the show! It was so fun and it 
seemed like the kids really got into pre-planning, they read perfectly and were super 
confident and proud of themselves.” 



 

Bookmobile and Library Express Van School visits: 
From Sarah's report: “On 4/20/22 Joe and I went to Furqaan Academy with the Library 
Express Van. This was the first time we were in an open area to bring in the carts of 
materials/ Previously,  we would be in their cafeteria which is a smaller space. It was fun 
to see all the smiling faces excited to get library books. We had many checkouts from 
the students as well as returns. At the end of the visit one of the teachers gave us a 
treat as a way to thank us for the hard work we do. “

 

 
Outreach Events  

• National Library Outreach Day (April 6)  
From Sarah's report: On April 6th, Outreach celebrated National Outreach Day. We 
had the Bookmobile and the Library Express Van parked outside in the front of the 
library building. Most of the activities were located in a meeting room due to weather 
conditions. The activities were a wheel to spin for a prize, trivia, and crafts.  It was a fun 
and successful event I feel for us in Outreach celebrating what we do! 
 
 

• Jamie McGee’s Literacy Night 



From Melissa’s report: “On 4/6, Carolyn and I attended Jamie McGee’s literacy night. 
We were there to promote our library services and answer any questions. We brought 
some giveaways with us. The whistle/flashlight was a very popular giveaway. We had a 
good turnout and I ended up making a library card for a student. It was nice seeing 
familiar faces. Some of the students recognized us from working on the Bookmobile so 
they told their parents who we were and that they love the Bookmobile.” 

•  CampFire Pet Adoption Event 
From Joe’s report: “Melissa and I attended the Camp Fire Pet Adoption Day that was 
held near the Trout Farm in Bolingbrook. The puppies that were up for adoption were 
very adorable and a lucky few found a new home and owner. Many of the attendees 
stopped by the Outreach table and asked questions about the library. Others just 
grabbed some cool Fountaindale giveaways to take home. The mayor was also in 
attendance and uploaded a video to facebook that included the Outreach table and 
display.” 

• Wood View’s Multicultural Fair 
From Melissa’s report: “On 4/21, I attended Wood View’s Multicultural Fair. I was 
there to read stories for a half hour. I pulled several multicultural books and I brought 
music just in case. The event was held outdoors. There were different stations 
representing different countries and they were handing out snacks and other activities 
related to the country. They announced my storytime at 5:30 so I was able to get some 
people to stop by to listen. After I was done reading my two books they announced the 
performances so I didn’t get anyone else after that. I’d say it wasn’t a bad turnout for 
being there for half an hour.” 

• Tons of Trucks at BRAC 
From Melissa’s report: “On 2/24, Joe and I attended the Tons of Trucks event that 
was held at BRAC. We were limited on space for all the giveaways. We were hoping to 
have a table outside, but we couldn’t because of the rain. The Park district ended the 
event at noon due to the weather. We did see 30 people in the 1 hour we were open 
and we had a few checkouts. The patrons thought our vehicle was cool, too.” 

From Jack Gonzalez’s report 

Studio 300  

Here are our April 2022 key stats: 
• 278 patrons actively used our lab. 

o 4 were Non-District Users. 
• 1636  items were checked out  

o 84  of that total circulated out of the lab. 
• 56 patrons attended our programs. 

o Total programming hours came to 13 



• 47 patrons completed our online classes: 
o 37 Orientation  
o 10  Maker Training  

 
 

April was when the Studio finished the training videos for Glowforge and Sublimation 
printer. We will be doing some promotion for these maker machines in May and have 
already been seeing interest from patrons. We also received the Wacom Cintiq and put 
it out for patrons to be able to use. We have witnessed patrons using it enthusiastically. 
The display tablet is an industry-standard for animators, graphic designers, and 
photographers. After seeing the success of having one tablet, we have decided to invest 
in a second one and see if that is enough to meet the communities demand. The team 
worked on and finalized the summer 2022 programing schedule, and we are all excited 
as we get closer to the Studios 10th anniversary celebration. We plan on forming a 
committee to help plan the celebration. Ariah left the team in April to pursue another 
opportunity. The team wished her good luck in her future endeavors.  
 
Justin 
For April, Justin created another theme in the display case for Easter. It again 
showcased many of the different crafts you can make with the Maker Lab machines. He 
trained staff member Ariah Long on TV Production, where Justin showed her how to 
use the Tricaster to record and produce live videos. He also showed a patron how to 
record a video podcast with just a camera, shotgun mic, and studio lighting in the TV 
production room. This was in contrast to their typical setup in an audio room with a 
camera, two mics, headphones, and the Rødecaster. Another patron was trying to use 
google slides for their 25 anniversary. Justin was able to show them a better option 
using the preset slide shows in Apple Photos, where they could add background music. 
Justin was also able to help them design a dvd cover using the online avery template for 
the DVD sticker sheets we have. Justin finished up his training for the maker lab by 
taking the training for the sublimation printer.  
 
Monica 
In April, Monica worked on selecting designs to put on the embroidery machine tablet 
for patrons to choose from. They also changed the screen settings on the Equipment 
Checkout tablet so patrons could browse the tablet at the desk. They organized the staff 
desk and tool drawer. Monica has been improving in answering questions for patrons 
and directing them to resources. Patrick trained her in troubleshooting the Prusa printer. 
She also completed the Ryan Dowd co-worker training. Monica used the CR10-V3 to 
print an articulated snake and let Communications film it for an Instareel. He also used 
photos taken by Anna to give to communications. He submitted photos of Jack’s paper 
lanterns and the 3D snake to Andrea for the Staff Newsletter. Monica updated the 
barcodes for the patron checkout sheet to reflect current maker machines. They learned 
how to implement conditional formatting in Google sheets and brainstormed with Jack 
about more interactive programing options for patrons, especially teens. They also gave 
a tour with Paul Mills for the LTA students from the College of DuPage. Monica talked to 
patrons about their projects to collect information to make an eventual patron showcase 
display. She has also improved her skills with the vinyl cutter and Scan ‘n’ Cut machine 
by troubleshooting with patrons. He attended a Staff Safety training and presented 
video equipment to the Brooks Middle School after-school program. Monica gave an 



impromptu one-on-one to a patron on Premier Pro basics. Finally, they learned to cut 
fabric on the Brother Scan ‘n’ Cut.  
 
Patrick 
In April, Patrick taught Tabletop Game Designing: Idea to Table. It brought three people 
in attendance, and Patrick has been preparing for the follow-up May program, Tabletop 
Design with Adobe InDesign. He and Ariah hosted the second Photography Club, with 
the five attendees all bringing in examples of the photography for peer critique. The 
photography prompt for the next month was experimenting with camera modes. Patrick 
also hosted the April Open Mic with Justin, bringing one of our largest crowds yet with 
12 people in attendance, including five performers. 
 
Jack 
In April, Jack held a program to celebrate Arabic-American Heritage month. Patrons 
built paper lanterns and decorated them with cutouts inspired by the One Thousand and 
One Nights. He also showed the film The Adventures of Prince Achmed and talked 
about the history behind the first feature-length animated film. Jack also hosted the 
Nameless Writers Group and began to train on cinema 4D through youtube videos. The 
software will be new to the Studio in May or June. He spoke to Maxon, the developers 
of the software, to get more information on their Maxon One suite, a software suite with 
multiple programs that can be used for video fx, 3d modeling, and animation. By 
providing these new programs, we hope that the community will have access to 
professional software that could inspire our creative patrons 
 
From Debra Dudek’s report 

Adult and Teen Services 
 
General Comments on the Month 
April premiered our department’s first large in-person drop-in event since the COVID-19 
pandemic began in March 2020.  Our Get Gardening Expo debuted on Saturday, April 
16 from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m., which included community groups, organizations, a plant 
exchange, and a paint-a-pot craft.  Around 60 patrons attended the expo, with 30 
patrons of all ages participating in the paint-a-pot 

craft.  



I worked with a small team of security staff and our new Teen Services Specalists to set 
up the event on Friday, April 15.  On the day of the event, our programming Nic Mitchell 
administered the main expo room while I hosted the paint-a-pot craft.  
Bolingbrook mayor Mary Alexander-Basta livestreamed our event on Facebook just 
after we opened our doors, and encouraged residents to drop in to the program. 
While some of our community partners were unable to attend due to staff scheduling, 
our attendees were very complimentary of the event and suggested we host a similar 
event next year.   
 
I fielded a call from the Gilder Lerhman Institute of American History on April 27.  The 
new exhibits coordinator contacted me regarding our prior booking of “Freedom: A 
History of US”, which was scheduled for November 2020.  The GLI had experienced 
quite a bit of staff reorganization due to the pandemic, and just now have the staff to 
begin rebooking exhibits.  I secured “Freedom: A History of US” for October 12-
November 12, 2022 during our library’s early voting period.  This exhibit is two years, 
late, however, I am super pleased to have it scheduled for later this year! 
 
Randi C., Teen Services Librarian 
Teen Programming (Virtual & In Person) 
 
Teen Crafternoon & Craft on the Go: Take-It Make-It Kits 
I used our department’s Silhouette Cameo to create April’s Teen Crafternoon video and 
the Craft on the Go kits. I found these really adorable bag designs in the Silhouette 
store. I used the Silhouette software to cut for different designs featuring animals: a fox, 
chick, rabbit and bear. I spent some time modifying the designs, cutting out all the 
pieces and then assembling the kits with the help of the teen volunteers. I created step-
by-step written instructions which included pictures of each step and then filmed and 
edited the instructional video. We put together 40 kits and all were taken! I also gave 
away several examples that were made while creating the instructions. I think the kits 
appreciated the different designs and that they were basically little bags that could hold 
candy treats! I also updated the intro for April’s video using a Canva template. I think it 
gave our series a more contemporary look and I am really proud of how everything 
turned out.  
 
Flower Herbariums 
I planned and presented a craft program in April called Flower Herbariums. This simple 
and easy craft was really beloved by our teens. We had purchased different dried 
flowers, baby oil and various size glass jars. Teens selected their flowers, arranged 
them in the jars and then added the oil to the jars. They then used glue guns to seal the 
jars so they wouldn’t leak. The teens had so much fun and were able to make multiple 
herbariums before the class was over. Some they planned to keep but others were gifts 
for friends and family. Our participants were really creative too! Some just used flower 
petals and created an ombre effect as they arranged them in the jar while others tried to 
only use one or two flowers to create a simple design. As I chatted with the teens, they 
were excited to hear we may run this program in the fall around Halloween and include 
more fall themed dried flowers. Here are some of the finished projects. 



 
 
Other Programming Activities 
A patron requested more coding and STEM classes for teens. Thanks to Paul I was 
able to meet with Laura Wilmarth from Lewis University. We hope to work together to 
plan some programming in the Fall. We still have to work out the details but things look 
promising. Laura also provided a contact for another presenter/organization in 
Plainfield. I will be reaching out to them soon to see if they would be interested in 
presenting a program at our library. I also contacted the Bolingbrook STEM Association 
and had a lovely conversation with Sheldon Watts. Sheldon was also very interested in 
continuing their partnership with the library and I hope to have good news for the fall. I 
will be attending one of their meetings in May to explain the library’s needs and hopes 
for partnership opportunities. Fingers crossed! We should be able to meet this patron’s 
request soon. 
 
School Services 
Outreach and I visited Brooks Middle School for our regular monthly visit. The teens 
were able to make their own laminated bookmarks. I brought our department’s small 
laminating machine, cardstock, scrapbook paper, stickers, bookmark templates, 
markers and more. The teens were happy to create their own bookmarks and several of 
them made more than one. This was our last visit for the school year and our first year 
back since COVID. It was definitely a learning experience and I can’t wait to go back 
next year. I will take time this summer to plan out some easy, simple projects that will 
appeal to our students at all the middle schools! 
 
I also had the opportunity to visit Humphrey Middle School’s Art Club. I brought our 
button makers and various craft supplies so that they could make their own buttons. 
They enjoyed it sooooo much! Some teens made collages, others used washi tape to 
create designs. Some used scrapbook paper, while others drew custom artwork. 
Everyone was so creative. I am supposed to go back in May and the teens want me to 
bring the button maker back again! I will be working with the art teacher to finalize the 
project details soon. 
 
Computer Classes:  We had one computer class for four patrons.  Another set of 
computer classes are scheduled for next month. 
Career Online High School:   
Currently Enrolled: 3 



Currently Enrolled 30 Day Probation: 0 
Currently Enrolled Completed 30 Day Probation: 0 
Students 75% Through Program: 0 
Graduate: 29 
 
Programming:  
From Nic M’s Report 
 
Get Gardening Expo(4-16)   57 Attendees with 30 participating in the 
craft  
 With the seeds of this idea being planted during a meeting with Dennis Dill, a 
member of the Bolingbrook Gardening Club, almost a year earlier, I was excited to 
finally get to the day that we could host our Get Gardening Expo and Seed Exchange. I 
had initially reached out to many groups around the Bolingbrook and Southwest 
Chicago area to see who would be interested in exhibiting their organizations and doing 
quick Q&As with attendees. 6 of those initial organizations responded with excitement 
for the program and confirmation of their attendance. The subsequent planning for the 
event also led to the addition of a craft portion to the event, hopefully being a strong 
incentive for patrons to attend the event, and some prizes and giveaways so that 
attendees (and some exhibitors) could get some items to get a jumpstart on their 
gardening plans this season.   
 
Specialist Highlight  
Audrey M. 
April was a productive and busy month that went by too quickly! I continued the Notary 
process by completing the supply order and the paperwork for the Illinois application 
and bond. Also, I hosted two fun programs for Nic, Chef Maddox and Leah Moon’s craft, 
that I was glad to be a part of.  
 
The IT Department showed me a few new tricks that are helpful for the printer and 
computers in the commuter commons area. If the printer has an error that reads, turn on 
the vender unit, it is usually an error in the paper size if you look at the details of the 
print job. To fix the issue, you can clear the printing history on the printer and resize the 
paper on the computer for the patron who was having trouble printing material.  Also, if 
the computers are slow at downloading multiple images, you can clear the download 
history and download multiple files all at once in a zip file format, which is a lot faster 
and usually doesn’t stall the computer.  
 
Librarian Highlight 
Aysha H. 

April Book Display at the 3rd floor checkout: Books with “Hope” in the title (which 
circulated well!) 

Since I completed my PIC training in March, I started having PIC shifts in April. 

I’m working on updating the older pathfinders on the ATSD Google site, including 
Murder Mysteries and Book Club Books. I’m also working on creating readers advisory 
bookmarks for Summer Adventure displays, with “ocean-themed” titles. 



I completed the online training to become a notary and I’ve ordered the supplies. 

I posted 3 blog posts in April: 

• Adult & Teen Ramadan Reads 
• Book review on Hell of a Book by Jason Mott 
• How to Get Over a Reading Slump 

Librarian Highlight 
Jay P. 
This month celebrates my 5th year with Fountaindale Public Library. I did not think I 
would get this far! I have greatly enjoyed my time here with Fountaindale. My tenure 
with ATSD has allowed me to make great leaps professionally and personally. I have 
worked with so many great people across departments and working with the Chamber 
has been a great way to get out into the community in new and exciting ways. I cannot 
wait to see what the future brings. 

For professional development, I viewed the 2022 Summer Reading Kickoff webinar from 
Novelist. It had a lot of great information on how to promote summer reading programs. 

I have officially finished all 4 obituary scrapbooks given into our care from the 
Bolingbrook Historic Preservation Commission. We also have a record number of 
“human” views to the page as you can see from the yellow bar. It is steadily increasing 
every month, though will most likely drop off so as I don’t have a lot of new content to 
add. Debra and I discussed what we can do to clean up the descriptions and subject 
terms to better catalog the records and make them easier to find. 

I spoke with Tana Petrov from Outreach about speaking at Greenleaf Apartments, a 
senior living community. Property Manager Renee Rozhon was kind enough to show us 
around their facilities and to discuss what would benefit their occupants. We decided on 
a smartphone class pegged for June 13 at 1:30 PM during a scheduled Outreach visit. 

Teen Specialist Highlight 
Hayley M. 
April was my first month here at Fountaindale, and it’s been quite a busy month. The 
first two weeks were spent training and meeting a lot of new people. Randi taught 
Andrea and I so much! We met with the Children’s Department, HR, Circulation, 
Outreach, Studio 300, Paul Mills, Nancy Korczak, John Hopkins for safety training, 
Steven Ford for blogging and Communico training, and Collections. We had Teen 
Meetings with Randi to discuss May booklists and displays as well as contests, prizes 
and crafts for Summer Adventure. We also chose a winner for the Teen Haiku Contest. 
 
This month I learned how to use Library Aware and created two booklists(Let's TikTok 
About It! Teen Reads and LGBTQIA+ Rainbow Reads May 2022) and used them to 
create a display in the Vortex and a display on the 4way outside the Vortex, 
respectively. I also picked out books for the All The Feels display on the 4way, made a 
display for Goth Vibes with Randi’s help and helped Randi pick out a few books for the I 
love To Bake! display in the Vortex.  
 
Specialist Highlight 
Alison P. 

https://www.libraryaware.com/1692/NewsletterIssues/ViewIssue/24d97ecf-8c97-4c91-b608-19bfc885379f?postId=50ef0cf5-ae07-4872-8f8b-9f44330c083f
https://www.libraryaware.com/1692/NewsletterIssues/ViewIssue/24d97ecf-8c97-4c91-b608-19bfc885379f?postId=50ef0cf5-ae07-4872-8f8b-9f44330c083f
https://www.libraryaware.com/1692/NewsletterIssues/ViewIssue/c23a9f8a-5f76-4af5-9f13-d213ac20b063?postId=542c2427-d5fa-4452-8c92-65bb2e7950b9


This month was pretty good. Lots of helping patrons on the computers, printing and 
faxing. I have also been in the Vortex. I have been able to work with both of the new 
Teen Specialists Andrea and Hayley, which has been lovely! They are both awesome! I 
also continued the process of becoming a notary. I have signed the document and had 
it notarized, and Nancy has mailed it. So now it is a waiting game for next steps. I am 
currently working on a few blog posts, one being a list of my favorite YA books, as well 
as a goofy meme project post, where staff members post memes that relate to a book.  
I also helped Randi by making some examples for the flower herbarium project, and 
gluing some petals onto some lotus lanterns.  
 
Specialist Highlight 
Jason P. 
April was mostly uneventful. Plenty of notarizations, most routine but a few cases of 
more complex situations. I’ve noticed my number of routine reference questions and title 
requests going back up after what felt like a long slump- not sure if this is a sign of 
anything bigger, but an interesting observation. My 2 staff picks of the month were for 
Moon Knight: The Midnight Mission and The United States of Captain America, both 
available on Hoopla.   
 
From Joyce Arellano’s report 
 

Children’s services 
Monthly Overview of Children’s Services: 
Children’s Services enjoyed another busy month of programs and visits from children 
and families. This month we highlighted the diversity of our community, from a special 
Pre-Eid crafting event to a week-long celebration of Día de los Niños. We partnered with 
Bolingbrook High School students to display their original stories told in French and 
Spanish. We also met a fantastic young maker who has collected and created nearly 
every Take-it Make-it kit CSD has offered since 2020. 
 
ART STUDIO: Royal Self Portraits (10) 
“Kids used tempera paints and oil pastels to create self portraits in the style of French 
painter Georges Rouault. We started the project by drawing figures in oil crayons. Then 
the kids started to color the portraits from the center going outward. Kids have a great 
sense of color and every portrait looked beautiful and unique.” Andreea D. 
 

   
 



DIY PICTURE BOOK: Part of Día de los Niños Celebration Week (26) 
“I wanted to highlight a Mexican illustrator [Sara Palacios] from one of my favorite 
children’s books, A Song of Frutas. I gave each attendee a tray with the book, glue 
stick, markers and crayons. I also laid out all of the mixed media materials such as 
sequins, foam pieces, buttons and stickers on the counter. I gave each attendee a copy 
of [A Song of Frutas] that I accidentally purchased in Spanish. I included a small booklet 
I created with the translation. Patrons were happy I was giving a book away in Spanish! 
One of my favorite comments I heard a patron say is ‘it’s like a collective creating 
space. If someone needs scissors or paper someone will say of course you can use it, 
we are all using the same things!’ It was refreshing to see the voice of a Mexican 
illustrator elevated to what it is now. This program brought out the creative and diverse 
voices of Bolingbrook. It was amazing to see patrons of all backgrounds there.” Melisa 
M. 
 
LET’S CELEBRATE EARTH DAY (29) 
“A big shoutout to Rosemary and Melisa for helping me put the final touches on the craft 
project and another shoutout to Darlene (our adult volunteer) for handing out 
instruments, pouring glue and helping the children with their craft. I read two books 
about loving our earth, and we sang songs associated with caring for our planet. Our 
craft was four parts of a circle with land, water, sky and space decorated just the way 
they like it.” Kathy B. 
 

  
 
PRE-EID CARDS & CRAFTS (24) 
“We offered three crafts to make: greeting cards, a paper bag mosque and an eight-
pointed star. Lots of people called wanting to sign up for the program! Since we couldn’t 
fit all of them into the program, we made activities from Ramadan READy available at 
the Children’s Services desk. It was fun being able to do a Ramadan program in person 
after not being able to in 2021 or 2020.” Sarah D. 
 
“It was really fun to see the activities that Sarah had set up. The families were so 
appreciative of everything, and the kids seemed to enjoy doing all the crafts. Several of 
the moms made a point to say thank you and that they really appreciated that we were 
offering the program for them.” Jen F. 
 
TAKE-IT MAKE-IT (762 kits) 

• Eid 8-Pointed Star Photo Frame 
• Guitar 
• Circle Snail 

https://pinnacle.polarislibrary.com/polaris/search/title.aspx?ctx=3.1033.0.0.1&pos=1&cn=2156136


• Paper Cactus 
• Sonic the Hedgehog 
• Legend of Zelda Shield 
• Nicho Box 

As kits ran out, we replenished the supply with crafts left over from previous programs 
and various prepackaged kits. 
 
Meet “our biggest fan of Take-it Make-it! He has been collecting them since we first 
started them at the beginning of the pandemic. His mom says ‘he has them in a 
treasure chest, and he still plays with them all the time!’” Melisa M. 
 

   
PAWS TO READ (27) 
“We had a new dog, Keagan. Everyone wanted to read to Keagan. We had patrons, 
young and old, who just wanted to come and meet all the therapy dogs. All the dogs 
and handlers are so enjoyable. Everyone loves to come and read.” Rosemary B.

 



https://plix.media.mit.edu/


We answered 1,485 reference questions and 620 directional questions. We also 
assisted with 22 one-on-one appointments and 7 teacher requests.  
 
“A brother and sister were using the computers. They had their grandpa’s library card 
and asked how they could get their own card. I explained the process to them. The boy 
said he was with his grandma today, and she only speaks Spanish so he’ll make sure to 
bring his parents. I told him there are a lot of people that work here that speak Spanish, 
so if ever she is here and needs help, there should be someone that will be able to help 
her in Spanish. His eyes got super big, and he said ‘thank you so much! That is 
amazing!’” Jen F. 
 

OTHER  

• Joyce assisted Marissa Yelenosky and the Kindness Day Ambassadors in 
distributing the newly designed Kindness Day t-shirts to partners and community 
members in Meeting Room A. Mayor Mary Alexander-Basta stopped by to pick 
up her shirt and take photos. We also gave copies of the Kindness Day book to 
representatives from participating schools (Brooks Middle School, Pioneer 
Elementary and St. Dominic.) 

 
From Amin Ali’s report 

Circulation Services 

April was a busy month for Circulation staff. We were dealing with two staff shortages, 
one full time and one part time for our public service points. We hope by mid-May to fill 
our three open positions. The Circulation Aides meet this month as did the Circulation 
Leads and Managers. In addition to that, I took part in the strategic planning meeting with 
Amanda Standerfer of Fountaindale Public Library. Amanda is also doing the strategic 
planning of LACONI, she will be meeting with the Circulation Services Section (CSS) next 
month virtually. Next month, CSS is hosting a virtual program called: Readers’ Advisory 
for Circulation Services. There are 126 projected attendees! We also discussed a series 
of programs for August or September that include person-in-charge training, emergency 
preparedness, etc. PIRC also met this month. To celebrate Pinnacle’s anniversary, our 
next meeting will be over lunch in June. I discussed Fountaindale rebranding and asked 
other libraries to share their bags for patron checkouts, if they had any. ILS Manager Matt 
is still working on Find More Illinois and will let us know if there is any news to begin 
implementing it with our OPAC.   
 
Kate, Assistant Manager 



In the month of April, we created 71 license plate stickers.  Now that warmer weather is 
coming, we are also renewing stickers for campers and motorcycles.  The end of the 
month was the busiest where we did 27 stickers in just a few days.  
 
Chuck celebrated his 10 year anniversary with Fountaindale on April 2nd! Kendra was 
able to help out on the Bookmobile for a few hours and had a great time. 
 
Amina and myself had several interviews for both the Specialist position and the Lead 
Specialist position.  We will continue these interviews into the beginning of May.  
 
I ran the long overdue report and billed patrons for those items.  
 
I attended the Vega Task Force meeting. This month the PIRC committee met in person 
for the first time since 2020!  We reintroduced ourselves as we had new staff members 
join the committee.  We discussed damaged items, postal code errors, patron blocks, 
and appointed new officers. I will start my position of Vice Chair in July.  
 
Mary, Lead Specialist 

• 180 in-person library card registrations for Fountaindale 
• 36 registrations for library cards on Patron Point via our website 
• 23 items moved to “Missing” status from the picklists of patron hold requests 
• 54 found items turned in at our Information desk for the month 

In addition to my daily responsibilities, I attended the IDEA committee meeting where 
blog posts for the upcoming months were planned out.  We're working to create 
resources for staff and patrons to access for reader's advisory recommendations. In the 
upcoming months, we'll be looking at the library's resources for patrons with different 
physical abilities, and what resources we have (or need) to meet them. 
  

Circulation Statistics 
 

New Patrons Registered 171 

Holds Pulled From Shelves  6,115 
 

Drive Up Statistics 

Total Visits  
(April 2022) 

727 

Previous Month 
(March 2022) 

729  

 
Drive Up Statistics Summary 

• Total pickups for April 2022=727 compared to April 2021=827 for a 12% 
decrease in number of pickups compared to LY 



• The average number of visits for April 2022 is 24, which is identical to the March 
2022 average 

• The busiest day for April 2022 was April 5, with 50 as the total visits. 
• The busiest time of day continues to be 3pm-6pm with a total of 284 visits during 

that time frame for April 2022. 
• The busiest time frame from 3 pm-6 pm with 312 pickups. 

 
 
  



Building Operations (Tasos Priovolos) 
 
We are continuing to accept applications and interviewing for our Security Monitor and 
Building Technician positions. 
 
Submittals and schedules are being reviewed and adjusted for the exterior lighting 
project.  We are running into supply issues with the security camera replacement 
portion of this project.  A temporary solution is being worked on in order to eliminate 
the possible delays to this project. 
 
The studio sound booths seals were replaced and/or adjusted to reseal these rooms 
from sound  
penetration.   
 
Our backup emergency generator had extensive work completed due to engine 
running issues.  Water penetrated the diesel tank which caused corrosion on the fuel 
system components.  The generator has been successfully running during our weekly 
tests since the repairs were completed.  
 
We had painting completed in various parts of the building.  This work was completed 
as part of our on-going routine maintenance. 
 
John Hopkins held security and safety training for new staff.  This training includes 
basic emergency training along with building specific training needed during an 
emergency. 
 
We completed our annual fire pump and fire alarm system test and inspection.  The 
fire pump inspection tests the ability to provide adequate fire suppression when a fire is 
detected.  The system and pump test was also witnessed and approved by the 
Bolingbrook Fire Department.  The fire alarm inspections tests all heat and smoke 
sensors, along with any audio/visual devices connected to the system. 
 
Our landscaping irrigation system was turned on for the season and repairs were 
made from damage caused during the winter months.   
 
ZENDESK -  
 
In April, 68 new maintenance tickets were created, and 78 new or existing tickets were 
completed. 
 
 
Collection Management & Technical Services (Christina Theobald) 
 
 
April 2022 Statistics Snapshot 

• 13% increase in digital circulation 
• 16+% increase in Libby eBook platform; 15% increase in Hoopla 
• 3,834 new items added to collection 
• 3,436 old & worn items were withdrawn 



• 315 interlibrary loans received for our patrons 
• 563 invoices paid and 348 items repaired 

 
 
Department Staff Updates 
We welcomed two new staff members to Collection Services this month!  Rodolfo Zagal 
was hired and fills the open part time Collection Aide position. Linda Ling joins us as a 
temporary part time Cataloger.  We’re excited to have Rodolfo and Linda join our team! 
 
 
JJC LTA Presentation on Technology Lending 
This month, I was invited to speak on a panel for an LTA class at Joliet Junior College. 
The topic of the class was Technology Lending in the Library.  I presented on our Vinyl 
Record and Record Player collection, speaking about our Task Force Team and steps 
for implementation, including collection development, acquisitions, packaging and 
processing, cataloging and shelving.  I also discussed our processes for circulation, 
maintenance and repairs. Both the students and instructors asked many engaging 
questions and were excited to see how vintage technology could be reintroduced into 
libraries for lending purposes. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Children’s 2023 Awards Books 
Children’s Collection Librarian Brett Luminais worked to make the new 2023 Awards 
Books available this month!  A total of 334 copies of the new Bluestem, Caudill and 
Monarch award nominees were ordered, cataloged and made available on our shelves 
one month ahead of schedule. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Grammys on Vinyl 
Acquisitions Supervisor Jacob Luce worked to purchase this year’s Grammy winners on 
vinyl and created a showstopping display. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Collection Services Staff Updates 
 
From Lynnette Hopwood, Adult Collection Librarian 
I have received several emails from patrons for our Can’t Find It service. One of the 
most interesting one was from a patron who had inquired about us purchasing 4K UHD 
movies. He had asked about the format in 2018 and I had replied that we weren’t 
purchasing them at this time. Much to my amazement, he replied to that email in April 
stating that he noticed that we were now purchasing them and thanked me for bringing 
the format to the collection!  A patron called me to thank me for having books that she 
wanted already in the collection. She was glad that she didn’t have to wait for us to 
purchase and process them as they were already on the shelves! She thought that for 
sure we were going to have to purchase them and that there would be a delay until she 
was able to read them. This really made her day and she wanted to tell me how 
wonderful we are! 
A patron replied to my email that I would purchase a book that he wanted saying, 
“Thank you so much. This book should be very useful to anyone interested in finding 
information on treating or preventing Age Related Macular Degeneration which is 
probably the fastest growing cause of blindness in the world. I look forward to reading 
it.”  The last compliment really made my day. A frequent ILL user was looking for a 
book, but it was only available in the United Kingdom. I reviewed the book and noticed 
that it would be popular with our patrons. I was able to order a copy and notified the 
patron that we were going to purchase it and that I would place a hold for him. He 
responded back to me saying, “Lynnette, thank you very much!! As always you are 



awesome!!” When I looked the item up for this report, it has already been checked out 3 
times in one and a half months! Looking at the CollectionHQ DEI Module, I noticed that 
all around our DEI percentages for the main collection are now at 18.2% which is above 
average compared to other libraries and higher than last month again! The adult fiction 
numbers are still a bit low (12.8%) but I feel that I can bring these numbers up in May. 
The adult nonfiction percentage is 20.4 The fiction numbers that are the highest are 
Black with 1,394 titles, Equity and Social Issues with 897 titles and LGBTQIA+ and 
Gender Issues with 670 titles. The three highest nonfiction categories are Equity and 
Social Issues with 1,766 titles, Mental and Emotional Health with 1,514 titles and Black 
with 925 titles.  Our overall collection Dead (items that have not been checked out in 
over two years) numbers and our Collection Check (items that have not been checked 
out in over four years) numbers remain under the recommended percentage. The 
recommended percentage is 10% or less. We are at 6.21% and 3.01% respectively for 
all of our collections combined (our Collection Check numbers continually improve). I 
am really excited to see our numbers continually improve month after month. Our 
Collection Check totals for the entire library are 417 items. I think that we can continue 
to improve that percentage. 
 
From Brett Luminais, Children’s Collection Librarian 
In April I focused on sending orders to reach 90% expended and encumbered on all 
fundlines I manage. This goal puts us in an excellent position to complete ordering for 
this fiscal year by the May 31 ordering deadline. I achieved this spending goal ahead of 
the end of the month, opening up my time to work on a number of projects. One such 
project was to identify titles on order whose publication dates had been pushed back 
beyond the publication date cut off of July 8th. I reviewed titles published out to 
December 2024 and identified a number of ordered titles whose publish dates were 
pushed back and would need to be canceled. I did this for two of our vendors, Baker & 
Taylor and Ingram. To make canceling these items easier for our Acquisitions Divisions, 
I added these items into carts and then forwarded them to our Acquisitions Manager. 
This will free up funds that would have rolled over onto next year’s budget and allows us 
to direct that money towards items coming out before the July 8th cut off date. I was 
then able to put out the 2023 Award Nominees, which we acquire and display annually. 
I made all of the items available and put them out in mid-April, providing these titles to 
our patrons much earlier than last year’s nominees. I reviewed the 2022 Award 
Nominees and then reduced the number of items returning to the shelves so the 
shelves were not overfilled. Many of last year’s titles are DEI titles, so I took special care 
in reviewing these titles to ensure we kept an appropriate number of them on hand.  
 
From Chris Castle, Cataloging Supervisor 
I created procedures for the collections that our Temporary Cataloger will be working 
on, namely, Adult, Young Adult, and Juvenile in Nonfiction and Fiction. I trained her on 
these collections and provided her with other helpful documents. So far, she has done 
an excellent job cataloging and has been a major help. A future project to move the 
Home School collection to the first floor was discussed. This will require some 
recataloging. A goal for Brett and me is to recatalog the problematic Parent-Child 
collection into Picture Books or Juvenile Nonfiction collections by the end of the year. 
Brett and I continued work on the Minecraft, Choose Your Own Adventure, and Star 
Wars J Series sections to assign second Cutters so the series within these series will be 
more easily identifiable for patrons and shelvers. We have met to discuss this and have 
created lists of new Cutters as well as procedures. We anticipate Minecraft and Choose 













 

Digital Content Fast Facts 

 
 
Libby by OverDrive 

• There were 5,819 unique Pinnacle patrons, which is a 15.8% growth from last 
year.  
Of those, Fountaindale had 981 active patrons in the month, 63 of which are 
new users. 

• During the month, PLC yielded 27,913 total checkouts; of those, 4817 circs 
were from Fountaindale patrons. 

• Checkouts by Format: eBooks: 51.9 %, Audio: 40.3%, eMagazines: 7.8% 
• Checkouts by Audience: Adults: 89.0%; Young Adults: 6.3%; Juvenile: 4.7% 

 
 
eRead Illinois/Axis 360 

• There were 97 active patrons for the month, 25 of which are new users 
• During the month, there were 90 eBook circs and 62 eAudio circs 
• eBooks accounted for 59% of checkouts, while eAudio accounted for 41% 

 
 
cloudLibrary 

• There were 66 active patrons for the month, 14 of which are new users 
• During the month, there were 258 eBook circs and 16 eAudio circs 
• There were 530 circs from cloudLink patrons 
• There were 145 instances of Pay-per-use titles used 

 
 
Hoopla 

• The top trending title was the Encanto movie soundtrack (2 months in a row) 
• There were 2,142 circs borrowed by 416 patrons 
• There were 416 active patrons, 34 of which are new users 
• Audiobooks were the most borrowed format, accounting for 50% of all circs, 

followed by eBooks with 32%, Movies/TV with 12% and Music with 6%. 
 
 
Kanopy 

• The most popular videos were Marty, Coroner, How to Eat Fried Worms and 
Moby Doc. 

• Patrons played 191 distinct video titles and 339 video plays 
• There were 61 active patrons 

 
 
Freegal 





 
Acquisitions & Processing 

 
• Purchase Orders created: 94 
• Invoices Paid: 563 
• Boxes Received and Opened: 122 
• Items Repaired: 348 

 
 

Cataloging 
 

• Items Cataloged and made available: 3834 
• Original bibliographic records created: 42 
• Magazines & Newspapers processed: 242 

 
 

 
 

Interlibrary Loan 
 

315 Items Received for our patrons 
• 258 items from IL libraries 
• 57 items from out of state libraries  

191 Items Sent out to other libraries 
• 90 to IL libraries 
• 99 to out of state libraries 
• 2 ALA Requests 

373 Items requested by our patrons this month 
• 357 submitted in OCLC 
• 8 items were too new to request 
• 8 were available in Pinnacle 
• 8 were out of country only 

287 Items requested by OCLC libraries this month 
• 134 from IL libraries  
• 151 from out of state libraries 
• 0 were out of country libraries 
• 2 were ALA Request Forms 

 
 

Weeding & Collection Maintenance 
 





Display Circs 
 

1st Floor: 
Lobby Cart: Stories to Bring Us Together – 72 
Lobby Cart: World Languages – 26 
Lobby Tree: Staff Picks – 43 
Lobby Cart: Gardening – 59 
Lobby Cart: Holocaust Remembrance – 24 
 
2nd Floor 
2nd floor cart: Across the Pond – 24 
2nd floor cart: 4K Movies – 70 
 
3rd Floor 
Self-Check: Hope – 22 
3rd Floor Desk Table: Bard’s Birthday – 1 
3rd Floor Cart: Arab American Heritage Month – 13 
3rd Floor Cart: SAAM – 13 
3rd Floor Cart: Spring – 17 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Ukraine/Russia – 8 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Politics – 3 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Financial Literacy – 5 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Music – 0 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Around the World – 4 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Meditation – 1 
3rd Floor Nonfiction Coping – 4 

Children’s and Teens 
• 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten – 82 
• April Showers – 46 
• Arab American Heritage Month – 18 
• Baby Animals – 9 
• Cinco de Mayo – 33 
• Earth Day – 38 
• Easter – 84 
• Easter DVD Endcaps – 38 
• Funny Movies Endcap – 9 
• Kindness Day – 17 
• Mother’s Day - 12 
• Poetry Month – 95 
• Spring into Motion – 22 
• STEAM DVD End Caps – 3 
• Step into Reading – 64 
• Anime Movies – 107 
• Teen Reads – 47 
• Teen Pop – 100 
• YA Create - 4 

 
 
   
Communications (Melissa Bradley) 
 
Communications Highlights 
 
 

• Our Google Ads had 53,566 impressions and 6,207 clicks. 
o Campaigns with the most impressions: 

 Catalog Items: 35,180 impressions; 4,063 clicks 
 Instagram: 8,114 impressions; 735 
 YouTube: 5,789 impressions; 818 clicks 

 
 

• We auto renewed 217 library cards with Patron Point. 
 
 

• We scheduled, wrote/edited and published 16 blog posts. 
 
 



• We created 16 Instagram reels which have 20,138 views combined. 
 
 

• Melissa coordinated the Library Workers Day pizza party for all staff. 
 
 

• Melissa interviewed several design firms about working together on our 
upcoming redesign. 
 
 

• Melissa and Steven held their second open-house video filming sessions for staff 
to record their staff picks for Instagram and YouTube.  

 
 

• Steven provided blogging and Communico training for new Teen Services staff. 
 
 

• Sabrina attended the Bolingbrook Arts Council Mosaic Design Committee 
meeting and helped select the final mural for the Performing Arts Center. 
 
 

• The Communications team attended the ILA Marketing Forum’s virtual mini-
conference on April 29. 
 
 

• Sabrina completed the summer issue of The Fountain, Bird Week collateral and 
several display cart signs. She also began work on our Summer Adventure 
collateral.   

     
Media 
 
 

• The Herald-News covered our partnership with Literacy DuPage to provide adult 
ESL classes. 
 
 

• The Hearld-News mentioned us as a Will County early voting site. 
 
 

https://www.instagram.com/fountaindalelib/reels/
https://www.shawlocal.com/the-herald-news/news/2022/04/05/bolingbrook-library-starts-group-to-help-adults-practice-english/
https://www.shawlocal.com/the-herald-news/news/2022/04/15/will-county-clerks-office-announces-early-voting-sites-for-primary-election/


• WJOL mentioned us in their Bolingbrook Earth Day clean-up coverage. 
 
Social Media Metrics 

• Facebook Metrics 
o 7 new followers 
o 659 page views 
o 29,609 people viewed our content (reach) 

 12,935 people saw our content because a friend shared, liked or 
engaged with it (viral reach) 

o 1,698 people engaged with our content (clicked, liked, commented or 
shared) 
 
 

• Twitter Metrics 
o 0 new followers 
o 37 page views 
o 3,682 tweet impressions 

 
 

• Instagram Metrics 
o 11 new followers 
o 120 post likes & comments 
o 32,785 people viewed our content (reach) 

 
 

• YouTube 
o 16 videos published 
o 13 new subscribers (1,004 total) 
o 2,816 views 
o 204.9 hours of watch time 
o 96,722 impressions (How many times our video thumbnails were shown to 

viewers on YT.) 

Email Marketing Metrics 

• MailChimp: 
o 19 emails sent (This includes weekly blog roundup emails) 
o 162 new subscribers (This includes blog subscribers) 
o Average open rate: 38.25% (industry average is 21.33%) 
o Average click rate: 3.75% (industry average is 2.62%)  

 
 

• Patron Point  
o Renewal emails open rate: 39.72% 
o Welcome emails open rate: 48.05% 
o Birthday emails open rate: 44.15% 

 
Finance (Jennie Nguyen) 
 

https://www.wjol.com/earth-day-clean-up-in-bolingbrook/


• ScanPro Account -  The balance for the ScanPro account has been closely 
monitored and the daily transactions are tracked in order to determine the 
average cost. This is to ensure there are sufficient funds in the account to handle 
the Interlibrary Loan daily shipments.  This service was put in place recently to 
supplement the UPS account due to the rising fuel charges by UPS.  Finance 
plans to create a  fund refillment schedule that would align with the board 
meeting date. The UPS account is currently set up on this timeline.   

• Procedures and Policies -  Finance is currently working with Lautherbach & 
Amen to review the Finance related procedures and policies.  Allyse and I 
worked to review the comments and questions noted on the procedure 
documents that have been reviewed and returned to us. I had reviewed the 
comments on the policy documents with Paul.  They were returned to the 
consultant for a secondary review.    A meeting with Jaime Wilkey has been 
scheduled to review the documents on May 5, 2022 to review and finalized the 
documents. 

• Financial Edge NXT system -  The Finance team has been experiencing 
several issues with the accounting system.  A case ticket has been submitted to 
Blackbaud in relation to the continued system accessibility and system slow pace 
issue.  Finance continues to send documentation of our issues which we send 
screenshots of what is happening with an explanation.  The blackbaud 
technicians are currently reviewing our database in order to determine the cause 
of all of our problems. 

• Program Contracts - I had reviewed our procedures if there was a way to 
improve the workflow for the program contracts.  Currently, the program 
contracts are being sent directly to the performers. The contracts are being 
signed via the Docusign program.  I reached out to Nancy Korczak to request if 
Finance could be added to the list to receive the signed contracts 
electronically.  This step will lessen the time of waiting for the contract to be 
forwarded to us, less copying and importantly have an electronic copy of the 
contract for record retention purposes.  The contact file can also be attached to 
the payment information in the accounting system.   

• FOIA Requests - There were four FOIA requests for the month of April 2022. 
 
 
Human Resources (Lea Pottle) 
 
 
Staffing and Recruiting 
 
Open Positions:  

• Adult & Teen Services Specialist- Adult Event Programming 
• Building Security Monitor 
• Building Technician 
• Circulation Services Associate Manager 
• Circulation Services Lead Specialist 
• Circulation Services Specialist 
• Outreach Services Specialist 
• Studio Services Specialist 

 
New Hires: 

mailto:nkorczak@fountaindale.lib.il.us


• Linda Ling, Cataloger, Temporary, 4/13 
• Peter Crones, Support Technician, 4/25 
• Rodolfo Zagal, Collections Aide, 4/25 

 
Departures: 

• Nikki Duran, Adult and Teen Services Specialist- Adult Programming, 4/14 
• Laura Ashner, Finance Aide, 4/21 
• Ariah Long, Studio Services Specialist, 4/30 

 
Board of Trustees Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Training; Lea 
Lea enrolled and distributed information regarding the required Anti-Harassment training 
to all Board members. The training should be completed prior to the May Board 
meeting. 
 
Executive Assistant position; Andrea and Lea 
Andrea and Lea have been assuming the tasks assigned to them while the Executive 
Assistant is on leave. 
 
 
Information Technology (John Matysek) 
 

• During the month of April 62 new help desk tickets were created by FPLD 
staff, and 73 new or existing tickets were solved by IT staff. 

• Worked with vendor AT&T to replace their on-premises router that had been 
causing periodic phone system outages over the last several months. 

• Along with Jose Robles and Nathan Peddicord, completed the online public 
auction of retired Apple desktop/laptop computers, and Apple and Dell 
computer monitors, with 74/75 items being paid for and picked up. 

• Met with Tasos Priovolos to discuss installation and configuration of a new 
LIRA supplied water sensor for the lower-level mechanical room. 

• Attended a webinar from vendor Google about how their Chrome OS can be 
used in the library environment. 

• Along with Melissa Bradley, met with vendor Archive Social to discuss 
discounted pricing for the library for their social media backup service. 

• Met with Jack Gonzalez to discuss Studio 300 software needs. 
• Met with vendor Netrix, LLC to discuss details of a proposal to replace all of 

the library’s network switches. 
• Along with Jose Robles, completed interviewing possible candidates for the 

vacant Support Technician position and hired Pearl Crones. Welcome to 
Fountaindale Pearl! 

• Along with Jose Robles and Nathan Peddicord, reconfigured the second-floor 
computer commons so all 30 Windows PC’s are once again available for 
patron usage. 

• Along with Jose Robles and Nathan Peddicord, completed configuring and 
deploying new staff PCs in the Collections Services staff workroom, and 
started work on the Public Desks on the 2nd and 3rd floors. 

 




